
City Council Meeting 
Regular Session Agenda 
Tuesday, May 7, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

 
Meeting called to order by the Mayor 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance  
 

1. Consent Agenda: 
a. Approve Minutes – April 2, 2019 Regular Session 
b. Approve Tax Releases & Refunds 
c. Approve Amending the Traffic Schedule to reflect the addition of a stop sign at the 

intersections of Ward Street and McBride Street as well as Providence Road and Oakley Street 
d. Approve Public Private Parking Lease Agreement with Graham Presbyterian Church  
e. Approve Request from Bryan Hagood to close the north and south side of West Elm Street 

from Maple Street to the first turnaround in the island past the Criminal Courts Building on 
May 27, 2019 from 9:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. for the Annual Memorial Day Ceremony 

2. Old Business: 
a. East Interstate Service Road Property : 

i. Accept offer to purchase of $264,703 submitted by Martin Properties ACNC, LLC for 
surplus property 

b. Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: Kronbergs Campground (SUP1901).  Application by Chuck 
Talley for a Special Use Permit to permit a Commercial Campground with up to 75 
Recreational Vehicle spots upon site (GPIN 8894743697)  

3. Requests & Petitions from Citizens: 
a. Request from Jason Cox for Consideration of a City Sponsored Life Safety Improvements 

Program 

4. Recommendations from Planning Board: 
a. Public Hearing: Lacy Acres (RZ1901).  Request by Penny Sekadlo to rezone property located 

on Chartwell Lane and Stonehaven Drive from R-18 to R-9 (GPIN 8872465865, 
8872469418, 8872562422) 

b. Public Hearing: Lacy Acres (S1901).  Request by Penny Sekadlo to approve a Major 
Subdivision for up to 165 single family residences (GPIN 8872465865, 8872469418, 
8872562422) 

5. Approve Agreement to Operate Burlington Animal Shelter & Pet Adoption Center 

6. Issues Not on Tonight’s Agenda 
 

Page 1 of 50



134 

CITY OF GRAHAM 
REGULAR SESSION 

THURSDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

The City Council of the City of Graham met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, April 2, 2019, 
in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building located at 201 South Main Street. 

Council Members Present:  Also Present: 
Mayor Jerry Peterman  Frankie Maness, City Manager 
Mayor Pro Tem Lee Kimrey  Aaron Holland, Assistant City Manager  
Council Member Chip Turner  Darcy Sperry, City Clerk 
Council Member Griffin McClure Bryan Coleman, City Attorney 
Council Member Melody Wiggins Nathan Page, Planning Director 

Alexa Powell, City Planner 

Mayor Jerry Peterman called the meeting to order and presided at 7:00 p.m.  Council Member Chip 
Turner gave the invocation and everyone stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consent Agenda: 

a. Approve Minutes – March 5, 2019 Regular Session 
b. Approve Minutes – March 14, 2019 Special Session 
c. Approve Arbor Day Proclamation 

Page 2 of 50



135 

 d. Approve Request from North Graham Baptist Church to close off the 300 block of West 
Whitsett Street on Saturday, April 27, 2019 from 8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. for a Community 
Block Party, pending receipt of a certificate of insurance listing the City of Graham as 
additional insured prior to the event 

 
Council Member Melody Wiggins made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by 
Council Member Griffin McClure.  All voted in favor of the motion. 

 

Old Business: 

a. East Interstate Service Road Property Update 
 
City Manager Frankie Maness reminded Council that at last month’s meeting, Council decided to 
initiate the upset bid process and ordered an appraisal for this property.  He informed Council 
Members that the appraisal is complete.  The estimated value from the appraiser is $266,000.  Mr. 
Maness advised that the City did receive a qualifying upset bid in the amount of $252,050.  This 
requires the process be repeated until no additional qualifying offers are presented. 
 
Following a brief discussion between Council Members and staff, Mayor Peterman opened the 
discussion to the floor.   
 
Mr. Chuck Talley of 808 Sideview Street Graham stepped forward and asked for clarification of the 
current offer’s net to the City. 
 
Mrs. Jennifer Talley of 808 Sideview Street Graham stepped forward and stated that it was her 
understanding that the upset bid would not start until the appraisal had been done.  
 
With no further comments forthcoming, Mayor Peterman move on to the next agenda item. 
 
 
b. Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: Kronbergs Campground (SUP1901).  Application by 

Chuck Talley for a Special Use Permit to permit a Commercial Campground with up to 
75 Recreational Vehicle spots upon site (GPIN 8894743697)  

Mayor Peterman reminded everyone that this Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing was continued from last 
month.  Planning Director Nathan Page explained that this is a request for a Special Use Permit for a 
Commercial Campground for property located on Kronbergs Court.  
 
Mr. Talley stepped forward and informed Council that after meeting with City staff, there are still 
some details that need to be worked out and he asked the Council for another 30 days. 
 
Mayor Peterman made a motion to postpone this until next month, seconded by Council Member 
Turner.  All voted in favor of the motion. 
    
 
Recommendations from Planning Board: 

a. Public Hearing: Feather Flags (AM1901).  Application by Richard Shevlin to permit 
feather flags within the City of Graham 

Page 3 of 50



136 

Mr. Page explained that there was an application by Richard Shevlin to permit feather flags within the 
City of Graham.  He informed Council of the various proposed language options included in the 
agenda packet.  Mr. Page stated that the Planning Board recommends approval with their proposed 
language. 
 
Council Members and staff briefly discussed what, if any control in the overlay and historic districts, 
size limitations and the City’s current ordinance which has an avenue in place where one can submit 
a request for permission from the City Manager for the use of signs that may be prohibited by our 
ordinance.  Also discussed was how this proposed language would affect a unified business 
development.  With no further discussion forthcoming, Mayor Peterman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Richard Shevlin of 510 Wildwood Lane Graham stepped forward and informed the Council that 
he owns a business at 909 Washington Street Graham which currently houses three businesses.  He 
stated that when one turns the corner from Providence Road onto Washington Street, you have about 
six seconds to notice the driveway into his building.  He added that without flags, he doesn’t know 
how anyone would see his driveway.  Mr. Shevlin fielded general questions from Council Members. 
 
Mrs. Talley stepped forward and spoke in favor of this text amendment.  She spoke of the pressure 
business owners are under to get brands advertised.  She also pointed out that the City puts banners 
up advertising various events. 
 
Mr. Tom Boney of the Alamance News asked what current signs at Mr. Shevlin’s property are not in 
compliance.  Mr. Page stated that there are currently four monument signs of one sort or another as 
well as free standing signs that are not permitted.  Mr. Page advised what the current ordinance does 
permit. 
 
Mr. Ricky Hall of 2501 Pepperstone Drive Graham stepped forward to address Council.  Mr. Hall, 
Chairman of the Planning Board, asked Council to adopt the Planning Board’s recommendations. 
 
Mr. Talley stepped forward and stated that while he knows they don’t have anything in writing, the 
former City Manager gave him permission to use banners.  He stated his support for flags. 
 
Mrs. Talley returned to the podium to pass out copies of advertising signage and to continue lobbying 
for this amendment.  Mrs. Talley stated that at the time the current ordinance was done, it was never 
supposed to affect them and they were told it was never going to affect them.  Mayor Peterman 
reminded Mrs. Talley that she was on the Council when the current ordinance was adopted.  Mrs. 
Talley responded that existing businesses were to be grandfathered in. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lee Kimrey asked staff how is it that a non-conforming site element that is temporary 
in nature ever be grandfathered in.  Mr. Page advised that he is not aware of any interpretation where 
that would be the case.  With no further comments forthcoming, Mayor Peterman closed the Public 
Hearing. 
 
Council Members discussed in length amongst themselves the difficulty of regulating signs of this 
nature.  Also discussed were concerns about location of flags and possibly more attractive landscaping 
and permanent signage being more beneficial to business.  Council Member Turner stated that he 
would like to see something brought back to Council that would benefit all business.  Mayor Peterman 
expressed concern with the City being allowed to do something others cannot do and stated that he 
has always been concerned with our current concert series signs.  Council Member McClure stated 
that the City breaks its own rules every day, noting speeding police vehicles and fire trucks, but it is 
for communal good. 

Page 4 of 50



137 

 Council Member McClure made a motion that the text amendment be denied and that the text 
amendment is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  Council Member 
Wiggins seconded the motion.  Ayes: Council Member McClure, Council Member Wiggins, Council 
Member Turner and Mayor Pro Tem Kimrey.  Nays: Mayor Peterman.  Motion carried 4:1. 
 
  
Downtown Small Area Plan Update – Toole Design Group: 
 
Mr. Jared Draper of 1119 East Martin Street Raleigh and Mr. Chris Lambka of 262 East Autumn 
Ridge Road Spartanburg, South Carolina spoke on behalf of the Toole Design Group.  They 
summarized who they are and why they are here.  Mr. Lambka stated that they are currently looking 
at not just the downtown area, but also the corridors leading into downtown.  He mentioned that they 
are looking at ways to possibly remove some of the 18-wheeler traffic from the downtown area and 
making it a more pedestrian friendly environment.  Mr. Lambka went on to speak about the public 
survey work they have been doing.  He informed Council that they have held ten stakeholder group 
meetings over the past couple of months.  He added that Graham is a happening place and they want 
to push Graham forward and build upon the economic development Graham is already doing.  He 
did inform Council that there are going to be changes they recommend. 

Mr. Draper advised that they are doing some designing this week, but that nothing is set in stone.  He 
invited everyone to stop by and look at the design concepts they are actively working on.  He added 
that some of the possible changes being looked at revolve around stormwater and utilities.  Also being 
looked at is public space, green space, parking, furniture amenities, understanding some of the 
pedestrian crossings and safety as well as the multi-modal access throughout the downtown and 
corridor areas. 

Council Members took turns asking both gentlemen about the surveyors who have been downtown, 
stormwater management, parking and defining the downtown area.  Following this question and 
answer period, Mayor Peterman opened the discussion to the floor. 

Mr. Boney stepped forward to express concern with the reports he is hearing in terms of the parking 
recommendations.  He stated that he is hearing that the plan calls for the elimination of parking spaces 
in downtown.  Mr. Draper stated that there are serval options being looked at and there may be some 
parking spaces eliminated and nothing it written into stone at this time.  

Council Members assured everyone that this is in the planning stages and nothing has been finalized 
at this time.  They reminded everyone that this is the public input section of this plan design.  The 
elimination of some parking is most likely going to happen to help with the City’s stormwater and 
utilities in the downtown area.  We have to fix the aging water and sewer situation in the downtown 
area before we can think of growing.  If the City wants to have a say in the future NCDOT paving 
project that will encompass the downtown area, this plan is required. 

Mrs. Talley stepped forward and echoed Mr. Boney’s concern about parking. 

Ms. Sherrie Pate of Ivey Road Graham stepped forward and said she has appreciated being able to be 
involved with City staff and Toole Design by attending the free work sessions that have been put on 
for the public.  She asked Council to consider making downtown friendly for everyone and not just 
business owners.  

With no further comments forthcoming, Mayor Peterman encouraged everyone to go look at the 
designs tomorrow.  

Page 5 of 50



138 

 

Historic Resources Commission Annual Update: 

City Planner Alexa Powell and Historic Resources Commission (HRC) Chairman Cary Worthy 
presented Council with an overview of what the Commission has accomplished this past year and 
highlighted their upcoming goals.  They reviewed the Certificate of Appropriateness Applications, 
gave an update of the Façade Grants, HRC members and staff training and their desire to someday 
achieving Certified Local Government (CLG) status for its local preservation commission activities.  

Council Members applauded the efforts by all HRC members and asked Ms. Powell and Mr. Worthy 
to relay a job well done to all members. 

 

Issues Not on Tonight’s Agenda: 

Ms. Janet Ecklebarger of 2872 Nereus Drive Mebane expressed concern for two historic buildings 
that were recently torn down within the past couple of years.  She asked Council to come up with a 
way to preserve materials that are currently going to the landfill.   

Downtown Development Coordinator Mary Faucette informed Council that she and Ms. Powell had 
recently attended the Main Street Conference.  Mrs. Faucette and Mayor Peterman spoke about a 
project involving the original Oneida Mill houses.  Brief discussion ensued about the potential project 
rehabbing these old mill houses.  Referencing Mrs. Ecklebarger’s concerns, Mr. Page advised that staff 
may be able to come up with a pamphlet that lists the benefits of salvaging material and a few names 
of organizations that may be willing to buy or remove material at no cost to the home owner and/or 
demolition contractor.  Consensus was given by Council to have staff come up with a pamphlet. 

Council Member Wiggins informed Council that there will be a ribbon cutting ceremony at 4:00 p.m. 
on May 9, 2019 at the Graham Historical Museum.  She also asked Council for consensus to study all 
boards and commissions appointments terms and how we appoint.  Consensus was given. 

Council Member McClure reported on the Mountain Valley Pipeline Southgate Project.  After many 
conversations with various local and state officials and much research on the project, he stated that 
he does not feel that the Graham City Council has to follow in the footsteps of the Alamance County 
Commissioners and take action against this project.  A general discussion ensued between Council 
Members and staff. 

Mayor Peterman introduced Officer Daniel Sisk from the Graham Police Department. 

At 9:02 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Kimrey made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Council Member 
Turner.  All voted in favor of the motion. 

 
_____________________________ 

      Darcy Sperry, City Clerk 
        

Page 6 of 50



Page 7 of 50



Page 8 of 50



STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT: ADD STOP CONDITIONS ON WARD AND PROVIDENCE STREETS 

PREPARED BY: CHIEF OF POLICE JEFF PRICHARD 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

For the City to consider erecting stop signs at the intersections of Ward Street and McBride Street, as well as 
Providence Road and Oakley Street. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Graham Police Department has received several complaints regarding drivers speeding on Ward Street 
between Holt Street and Denny Circle. The speeding complaints have been received for several years now. There 
are also a large number of vehicle crashes which occur at the intersection of Providence and Oakley. 
It is common for the Police Department to receive complaints about speeding throughout the city. The city has 
previously considered and approved erecting stop signs at other areas where speeding was being a problem. While 
I cannot say how effective erecting stop signs in the past to reduce speeding, I can say that the complaints from 
citizens where stop signs have been erected to curb speeding have reduced. The introduction of a 4-way stop from 
an existing 2-way stop controlled intersection has been shown to reduce crashes to 30% of the previous volume. It 
is my opinion that whenever we can get drivers to slow down or stop at a traffic direction sign that overall speed 
will be reduced and therefore the community is made safer. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Minor. The City’s street department staff can install and maintain the signs. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City create two all-way stop intersections. 

SUGGESTED MOTION(S) 

I move to authorize to accept the recommendation by the Police Chief that the City erect stop signs at the 
intersections of Ward Street and McBride Street as well as Providence Road and Oakley Street, and to update the 
Traffic Schedule to reflect the same. 

Page 9 of 50



STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT: LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PARKING FACILITIES 

PREPARED BY: MARY FAUCETTE, DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR 

REQUESTED ACTION:  

Sign lease agreement for shared parking facilities with Graham Presbyterian Church. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The City of Graham and Graham Presbyterian Church have had a 
parking agreement for several years.  The last agreement expired in 
2010 and is currently before you tonight to create a five-year term 
agreement moving forward.  

With approval the lease agreement will be effective from today’s 
date through December 31, 2023. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

In accordance with the proposed agreement asphalt repair work, 
striping and snow removal will be provided. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval 

SUGGESTED MOTION(S): 

I make a motion to approve the lease agreement as presented. 

Page 10 of 50



Page 11 of 50



Page 12 of 50



Page 13 of 50



Page 14 of 50



 STAFF REPORT 

REQUESTED ACTION:  

Authorize sale of E. Interstate Service Road Property. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

In 2009, the City of Graham acquired a 5.5 Acre parcel of land on E. 
Interstate Rd. in Graham for $335,000. The City began marketing 
the property for sale in 2011.  The tax value of the property is 
currently listed at $250,000 and a recent appraisal revealed a 
$266,000 opinion of value. 

Since putting the property up for sale, the City has received only 
one prior offer, in 2014, in the amount of $175,000. City Council 
rejected this offer as the price was well below market value. In 
February, an offer in the amount of $225,000 ($213,750 net) was made. Subsequently another competing offer was made 
in the amount of $240,000. This offer prompted the adoption of a “Resolution Authorizing Sale and Upset Bid Process for 
Property On E. Interstate Service Road”.   

The upset bid process is complete following three rounds of bidding with the prevailing bid of $264,703 submitted by 
Martin Properties ACNC, LLC.   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The City will realize a cash receipt of nearly $264,703 but will realize a loss of approximately $70,000, assuming no taxable 
development of the property.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval.  The upset bid process yielded a result that is less than one half of a percent (<0.5%) from the appraised value.  
Therefore, it is believed that the bid received satisfies the legal requirement of the City to receive adequate consideration.  
While an argument could certainly be made for the City to hold on to the property, proceeds from the sale could be used to 
forward other initiatives that could prove fruitful for the City in the long run. Examples include: economic development, 
infrastructure, Development Ordinance revisions, redevelopment assistance, Development Finance Initiative projects, etc… 

SUGGESTED MOTION(S): 

I make a motion to accept the offer of $264,703 submitted by Martin Properties ACNC, LLC for surplus City property on East 
Interstate Service Road, more particularly described as GPIN #8884402904, Parcel ID: 146703 and authorize The City 
Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk to effectuate the sale. 

SUBJECT: E. INTERSTATE RD. PROPERTY

PREPARED BY: FRANKIE MANESS, CITY MANAGER 

Page 15 of 50



Page 16 of 50



Page 17 of 50



Page 18 of 50



Page 19 of 50



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Nathan Page, Planning Director 

Kronbergs Campground (SUP1901) 

Type of Request: Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on February 19, 2019 
City Council on March 5, 2019 

Contact Information 
William G. Talley 
PO Box 872 
Graham NC, 27253 
336-229-4225; chucktalley21@hotmail.com 

Summary 
This is a request for a Special Use Permit for a Commercial 
Campground for property located on Kronbergs Ct. The property 
is currently vacant. Properties zoned Industrial are required by 
the Development Ordinance to apply for a Special Use permit to 
allow the use of Commercial Campground.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Location 
Kronbergs Court 

GPIN: 8894743697 
 

Current Zoning 
Industrial (Light) 

(I-1) 

Proposed Zoning 
Industrial (Light) (I-1) 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
General Business, Industrial 

(Light) 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Vacant, Commercial, Industrial 

Size 
Approx. 34.5 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
Yes 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval, with conditions 

Page 20 of 50



Conformity to The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan (GCP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Planning Type: Industrial 

Development Type:  Industrial 

Applicable Policies; 

• 2.1.8: Tourism Promote Graham as a tourist destination with 
a focus on Graham’s historic downtown, access to the Haw 
River and Haw River Trail (portion of the North Carolina 
Mountains-to-Sea Trail), art, museums, and parks. The 
installation of a commercial campground here could 
positively contribute to tourism in the vicinity. 

• 2.4.2: Promote Industrial Redevelopment. Encourage 
reinvestment and intensification at existing industrial sites. 
Encourage redevelopment of existing buildings and 
infrastructure for industrial growth. This project is not the 
highest and best use for the property, but given the quantity 
within the floodplain, it is a reasonable compromise. 

 

DRAFT Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 
In granting a special use permit, the City Council shall find that all of the six conditions listed below have 
been met, or it shall be denied. Staff has prepared the following DRAFT findings of fact for each of the 
six conditions. These findings should be modified by the Council as it considers its decision. 

1. All applicable regulations of the zoning district in which the use is proposed are complied with. 

o The property is zoned I-1, a Commercial Campground is only permitted with a Special Use Permit. 

2. Conditions specific to each use, identified by the Development Ordinance, are complied with. 

o There are no specific conditions for a Commercial Campground. 

3. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed and 
developed according to the plan as submitted. 

o The use of the location as a Commercial Campground will not materially endanger the public 
health or safety. 

4. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property or that the use is a public 
necessity. 

o The use of the location as a Commercial Campground will not substantially injure the value of 
adjoining property. 

5. The location and character of the use if developed according to the plan as submitted will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with the plan of 
development for the Graham planning area. 

Planning Type 
Industrial 

Development Type 
Industrial 

Large one and two story buildings 
with access to the Interstate. 

Limited Setbacks, heavy buffers, 
minimal adverse environmental 

impacts. 

Transportation Infrastructure is 
predominately wide lanes with 
shoulders and appropriate curb 

radii to accommodate large 
vehicles. 

Density of 0.3 to 0.5 FAR 

Page 21 of 50



o The proposed Commercial Campground is located in an industrial section of Graham and the future 
land use is Industrial. Therefore, a campground is in general conformity with The Graham 2035 
Comprehensive Plan. 

6. Satisfactory provision has been made for the following, when applicable: vehicle circulation, parking 
and loading, service entrances and areas, screening, utilities, signs and lighting, and open space. 

o The TRC shall evaluate a presented site plan for conformance with the listed requirements. 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, staff 
recommends approval, with conditions of the Special Use Permit. Recommended Conditions: 

• Remote access to the property be provided in case of emergency. 
• Sanitary sewer connections shall be designed, maintained, and operated to prevent intrusion in 

the event of a flood, with design parameters as determined and approved by the City of Graham 
Utility Director. 

• A TRC-approved plan shall be in place before any construction activities begin. 
 
This action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons: 

• This action is likely to increase tourism (Policy 2.1.8), and increase the development density of one 
of our industrial properties (Policy 2.4.2). 

Page 22 of 50



Page 23 of 50



City Council 
Decision & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. When adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment, 
the City Council shall also approve a statement describing whether its 
action is consistent with the comprehensive plan and briefly explaining 
why the City Council considers the action taken to be reasonable and in 
the public interest. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council, but a comment by the Planning 
Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the 
comprehensive plan shall not preclude consideration or approval of the 
proposed amendment by the City Council. 

1. Choose one… 

 I move that the application be APPROVED as presented. 

 I move that the application be APPROVED with the following conditions: 

o Remote access to the property be provided in case of emergency. 

o Sanitary sewer connections shall be designed, maintained, and operated to prevent intrusion in 
the event of a flood, with design parameters as determined and approved by the City of Graham 
Utility Director. 

o A TRC-approved plan shall be in place before any construction activities begin. 

o  [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move that the application be DENIED. 

2. Choose one… 

 I move to adopt the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as presented in the staff report. 

 I move to adopt the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law presented in the staff report  
with the following revisions: 

3. Choose one… 

 The application is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 The application is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

4. State reasons… 
This action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons: 
 
 
 
 
This report reflects the decision of the City Council, this the 7th day of May, 2019.  

Attest: 

  
Gerald R. Peterman, Mayor 

  
Darcy L. Sperry, City Clerk 

Kronbergs Campground 
(SUP1901) 

Type of Request 
Special Use Permit  

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on February 19, 2019 

City Council on March 5, 2019,  
April 2, 2019 & May 7, 2019 

 

Page 24 of 50



Page 25 of 50



Page 26 of 50



PLANNING ZONING BOARD 
Tuesday, April 16, 2019 

 
The Planning & Zoning Board held their regular meeting on Tuesday, April 16, 2019 in the 
Council Chambers of the Graham Municipal Building at 7:00 p.m.  Board members present 
were Dean Ward, Nate Perry, Ricky Hall, Eric Crissman, Michael Benesch, Justin Moody and 
Bonnie Blalock.  Staff members present were Nathan Page, Aaron Holland, and Debbie Jolly, 
Zoning and Inspection Technician. Chair Hall called the meeting to order, gave the Overview of 
the Board, general meeting rules and gave the invocation. 
 

• Approval of the March 19, 2019, meeting minutes with correction Bonnie was not at the 
last Meeting and did not vote.  A motion was made to approve the minutes as amended 
by Ricky Hall seconded by Dean Ward.  All voted in favor. Before going to the new 
business Ricky Hall disclosed that he lives in the subdivision that is abutting the one we 
are discussing tonight and that he is a member of the Valleyfield HOA. Chair Hall polled 
the board and no members found a Conflict of Interest.                                                                                                       

• New Business  

 
• RZ1901 Lacy Acres. Application by Penny Sekadlo to rezone approximately 58 

acres form R-18 to R-9. GPIN 8872465865, 8872469418, and 8872562422.   Mr. 
Page gave an overview of the requested subdivision. Penny Sekadlo and Carla 
Sevilla, the developer, gave a brief overview of the project. The following people 
spoke against the subdivision and voiced concerns about traffic, overcrowding, 
and the roads being accessed on what were previously dead end roads.  
 
Sandra LeFrancois                    973 Stonehaven Dr 
Mary Taylor                              974 Stonehaven Dr 
Joseph Hessnice                        985 Stonehaven Dr 
Lauren Elinski                           2447 Pepperstone Dr 
Michelle Ping Johnson              986 Stonehaven Dr 
Sally Hessnice                           985 Stonehaven Dr 
Bonnie Whitaker                       2456 Greenview Dr 
Stephen Byrd                            2421 Chartwell Ln 
Tom Balchin                             2361 Knightdale Dr 
Tyrone Richardson                   2709 Pepperstone Dr 
Jessica Valterra                         2405 Chartwell Ln  
Nicole Richardson                    2709 Pepperstone Dr 
Marsha Moore                          2400 Chartwell Ln 
Jim Trenner                              2622 Pepperstone Dr 
Selina Foster                            2422 Pepperstone Dr 
Tommy Arnold                        2449 Greenview Dr 
Jane Promnitz                          2516 Pepperstone Dr  
Pat Morefield                           2705 Peperstone Dr 
Keith Nice                                2432 Knightdale Dr 

Page 27 of 50



Richard Hughes                               2432 Knightdale Dr 
Rita Cole                                          944 Stonehaven Dr 
Tommy Brown                                2408 Whispering Hills Dr 
Mike Sutton                                     2446 Whispering Hills Dr 
Phyllis Holt                                     3928 Yount Ct 
Robert Toney                                  2517 Covington Loop 
 
Chair Hall closed the Public hearing. Penny Sekadlo and Carla Sevilla addressed 
some of the concerns that the neighbors bought up and answered questions from 
the planning board. The planning board had a brief discussion between 
themselves; Michael Benesch made a motion to deny. Dean Ward seconded. Vote 
was 5-2 with Nate Perry and Eric Crissman voting against. 

 
b. S1901 Lacy Acres. Application by Penny Sekadlo for major subdivision with up to 165 single-
family dwelling lots. Ricky Made a motion to deny. Dean Ward seconded. All voted Aye. 
 
 
c. AM1902 Volunteer Representation. Application by Jan Searls to permit additional 
representation on our boards and commissions with the City of Graham. This item was pulled by 
Jan Searls and therefore did not get heard.  
 
 
Chair Hall made a motion to adjourn, Michael Benesch seconded. All voted Aye.                
                

 
                                                                                                                  

 No further business the meeting was adjourned.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Debbie Jolly 

 

Page 28 of 50



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Nathan Page, Planning Director 

Lacy Acres (RZ1901) 

Type of Request: Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 16, 2019 
City Council on May 7, 2019 

Contact Information 
Penny Sekadlo 
9220 Fairbanks Drive, Suite 220 
Raleigh NC, 27613 
919-848-1461; pennyengineer@aol.com 

Summary 
This is a request to rezone the subject property from R-18 to  
R-9. The property is currently vacant, wooded, and under 
cultivation.  

 

 

 

 

Location 
Chartwell Ln and  
Stonehaven Drive 

GPIN: 8872465865, 8872469418, 
and 8872562422 
Current Zoning 

Residential (low density) 
(R-18) 

Proposed Zoning 
Residential (high density) (R-9) 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-18, R-12 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family and Vacant 

Size 
Approximately 57 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
Yes 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval 

Page 29 of 50



 

Conformity to the Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan (GCP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Policies; 

• 3.3.2 Focused Development. In order to maintain Graham’s 
affordability and promote growth, the city will facilitate smart 
growth development by promoting infill development and 
focused, walkable, and mixed use built environments. This 
development utilizes the land which is served by city water 
and sewer more efficiently than maintaining the existing R-18 
zoning. Additionally, the Suburban Residential neighborhood 
type density recommendations are greater than that which is 
permitted by R-18 zoning. 

Applicable Strategies; 

• 4.3.1 Land Use Patterns. Promote development of efficient 
land use patterns to allow continued quality and efficiency of 
water systems. Discourage the extension of water service into 
areas that are not most suitable for development.  The site 
would connect to existing city infrastructure. 

 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan and the City of 
Graham Development Ordinance, staff recommends approval of the rezoning. The following supports 
this recommendation: 

• Rezoning the property would be in consistence with Policy 3.3.2 and Strategy 4.3.1 of The Graham 
2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Planning Type 
Neighborhood 

Development Type 
Suburban Residential 

For single family residential, 
townhouses, duplexes, accessory 

dwelling units, and small scale 
multi-family dwelling of twelve 

units or less. 

Buildings should be located near 
the front of the property line, 

oriented towards the street, and 
include front porches and other 

private outdoor spaces. 

Recess garages behind the front 
of buildings to avoid streetscapes 

dominated by garage doors. 

Density of 3 to 6 DU/acre 

Page 30 of 50



Page 31 of 50



Page 32 of 50



Page 33 of 50



City Council 
Decision & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. When adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment, 
the City Council shall also approve a statement describing whether its 
action is consistent with the “The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” and 
briefly explaining why the City Council considers the action taken to be 
reasonable and in the public interest. The Planning Board shall provide a 
written recommendation to the City Council, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the “The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the City Council. 

Choose one… 

 I move that the application be APPROVED. 

 I move that the application be DENIED. 

Choose one… 

 The application is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 The application is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

State reasons… 

This action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons: 

 

 

This report reflects the decision of the City Council, this the 7th day of May, 2019. 

Attest: 

  
Gerald R. Peterman, Mayor 

  
Darcy L. Sperry, City Clerk 

Lacy Acres (RZ1901) 

Type of Request 
Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 16, 2019 

City Council on May 7, 2019 
 

Page 34 of 50



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Alexa Powell, City Planner 

Lacy Acres (S1901) 

Type of Request: Major Subdivision 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 16, 2019 
City Council on May 7, 2019 

 
Contact Information 
Penny Sekadlo 
9220 Fairbanks Dr. Suite 220, Raleigh, NC 27613 
919-848-1461; pennyengineer@aol.com  

Summary 
This is a request to subdivide the 57 acres of the subject property for 
up to 165 single family residential lots. The properties are currently 
vacant.  

 

Technical Review Committee 
The Technical Review Committee reviewed the application and provided comments to the applicant via 
the City Planner. As of the publishing of this agenda packet, the applicant had not responded to the 
comments. There are substantial required revisions to the plans, but they do not affect the number of 
proposed lots, nor the access points from Chartwell Ln. or Stonehaven Dr. 

Location 
Lacy Acres 

GPIN: 8872465865, 8872469418, 
8872562422  

Current Zoning 
Residential District, low-density 

(R-18) 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12 & R-18 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Low and medium density - single 

family residential, vacant land 

Size 
57.48 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
New Infrastructure Proposed 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval, with conditions 

Page 35 of 50



 

Page 36 of 50



Conformity to The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan 
and Other Adopted Plans 
From Our Vision 

• A Healthy Environment New growth in Graham will occur 
sustainably, with minimal impact on the natural environment. 
Conservation efforts will maintain the health of the watershed, 
preserve habitat for native plants and animals, as well as reduce 
pollution through investments in renewable energy sources, 
clean transportation options, and resource conservation. This 
subdivision proposes approximately 13.7 acres of open space 
(approximately 24% of the total parcels), mostly in the 
floodplain. This protection of existing floodplain will reduce 
downstream flood events and protect habitat. The common 
areas are identified in our Future Land Use Map as areas to 
protect. Additionally, it will begin to lay out a greenway 
connection to the MST/HRT along Big Alamance Creek. 

Applicable Strategies and Policies 

• Policy 3.2.3 Fewer Dead-end Streets Discourage or prohibit the development of cul-de-sacs and 
dead-end streets in new projects. This proposal permits redundant access to all but a few lots, and 
will reduce the bottleneck which exists at Valleyfield. 

• Policy 3.2.4 Greenway System Promote a greenway system that links together the City’s 
recreational resources and provides connections to commercial, employment, and residential areas. 
Greenways along stream buffers should be prioritized in order to protect the stream watershed. This 
parcel contains land that a pedestrian easement will be required as a condition of TRC approval.  

• Strategy 4.2.1 Greenways Continue to develop a greenway system that links together the City’s 
recreational resources. Alamance County Parks and Recreation is attempting to link many of these 
neighborhoods with the Haw River Trail. 

Policy 4.3.1 Land Use Patterns Promote development of efficient land use patterns to allow 
continued quality and efficiency of water systems. Discourage the extension of water service into 
areas that are not most suitable for development. This proposal keeps almost all of the development 
out of the floodplains, and connects to stubs from the north and west. 

 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Based on The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, staff 
recommends approval of the subdivision. 
 
The following supports this recommendation: 

Allowing a high density subdivision in this location removes households from the potential harm 
from floodways (Policy 4.3.1), and protects greenspace (3.2.4) and promotes a greenway trail 
system (4.2.1). 

Development Type 
Suburban Residential 

Located near a major 
thoroughfare 

For single family residential 

Characteristics include  
sidewalks on both sides, street 

trees at 30-40 feet intervals, and 
block lengths less than 600 feet 

Density of 3 to 6 DU/acre 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 

Page 37 of 50



Page 38 of 50



Page 39 of 50



CO
N

TA
CT

PE
N

N
Y 

SE
KA

D
LO

92
20

 F
AI

RB
AN

KS
 D

R 
SU

IT
E 

22
0

RA
LE

IG
H

, N
C 

27
61

3
91

9-
84

8-
14

61
pe

nn
ye

ng
in

ee
r@

ao
l.c

om

O
W

N
ER

W
O

LF
E 

PH
YL

LI
S 

H
O

LT
 L

AN
G

ST
O

N
39

28
 Y

O
UN

T 
CT

BU
RL

IN
G

TO
N

 N
C 

27
21

5
PI

N
88

72
-4

6-
58

65
PA

RC
EL

 ID
13

00
28

PA
RC

EL
 A

RE
A

19
.1

6 
AC

O
W

N
ER

H
O

LT
 D

O
RO

TH
Y 

B
23

05
 L

AC
Y 

H
O

LT
 R

D
G

RA
H

AM
 N

C 
27

25
3

PI
N

88
72

-4
6-

94
18

PA
RC

EL
 ID

13
00

29
PA

RC
EL

 A
RE

A
19

.1
6 

AC

O
W

N
ER

H
EL

EN
 K

EL
LA

M
 R

EV
O

CA
BL

E 
LI

VI
N

G
21

55
 L

AC
Y 

H
O

LT
 R

D
G

RA
H

AM
 N

C 
27

25
3

PI
N

88
72

-5
6-

24
22

PA
RC

EL
 ID

13
00

89
PA

RC
EL

 A
RE

A
19

.1
6 

AC

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

SE
VA

CA
N

T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

SE
16

5 
SI

N
G

LE
 F

AM
IL

Y 
LO

TS

TO
TA

L 
AR

EA
57

.4
8 

AC

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 Z

O
N

IN
G

R-
9

SI
TE

 D
AT

A

3/
26

/1
9

JB
L

PL
S

LACY ACRES SUBDIVISION
GRAHAM          ALAMANCE CO          NORTH CAROLINA

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN

NC HWY 49

M
O

N
RO

E 
H

O
LT

 R
D

LA
CY H

OLT
 RD

RO
GER

S R
D

BI
G 

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
RE

EK SI
TE

CHART
WEL

L L
N

ST
ONEH

AVE
N D

R

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

18

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40

41

42
43

44

45 46

47

48

49

50 51 52

53
54

55

56

58

59
60

61

63

64

65

66

67686970

71

72

73

74

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4

15
5

15
7

15
815

9

16
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
1

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

14
2

14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

11
4

11
5

11
6

11
7

11
8

11
9

12
0

12
1

12
212
312

412
512

612
7

12
8

12
9

13
0

15
0

14
9

14
8

14
7

10
9

11
0

11
1

11
2

11
3

98

99
10

0 10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
710

8

75

76

77 78

79

80

81
82

83
84

85

86

87

88

89
90

91

92
93

94

95

97

96

62

1"
=

20
0'

57

15
6

SCM#2

SC
M

#1

60
'

150'

15
'

TY
PI

CA
L 

LO
T 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S

30' 30'

8'

0
20

0
40

0
80

0

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
2

PH
AS

E 
3

PH
AS

E 
4

27
' B

B 
TY

P.
50

' R
/W

 T
YP

.

C1
2

TE
RR

EL
L 

RI
CH

AR
D

 E
AR

L
88

72
-4

7-
11

26
D

EE
D

 4
65

/5
77

M
CR

EY
N

O
LD

S 
BU

D
D

Y 
G

88
72

-4
7-

45
81

D
EE

D
 2

85
1/

31
1

M
AX

W
EL

L 
D

EW
EY

88
72

-4
7-

67
84

D
EE

D
 1

21
9/

70
6

KI
M

RE
Y 

RO
N

AL
D

 R
 &

 S
UE

 F
88

72
-4

7-
11

26
D

EE
D

 4
79

/2
04

BY
RD

 E
AR

L 
S 

& 
LO

RA
 L

88
72

-5
7-

29
77

D
EE

D
 2

25
9/

40
4

EA
ST

ER
 D

AV
ID

 D
88

72
-5

7-
48

32
D

EE
D

 2
16

0/
59

7

VA
LL

EY
FI

EL
D

 O
F 

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
O

.
88

72
-5

7-
67

80
D

EE
D

 2
10

3/
20

0

VA
LL

EY
FI

EL
D

 O
F 

AL
AM

AN
CE

 C
O

.
88

72
-5

6-
91

69
D

EE
D

 2
35

3/
30

BIG ALAMANCE CREEK

50
' R

IP
AR

IA
N

BU
FF

ER

FE
M

A 
FL

O
O

D
 F

RI
N

G
E

FE
M

A 
FL

O
O

D
W

AY

Page 40 of 50



Page 41 of 50



City Council 
Decision & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. When adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment, 
the City Council shall also approve a statement describing whether its 
action is consistent with the “The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” and 
briefly explaining why the City Council considers the action taken to be 
reasonable and in the public interest. The Planning Board shall provide a 
written recommendation to the City Council, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the “The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the City Council. 

Choose one… 

I move that the application be APPROVED. 

I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following condition(s); 
• [Insert additional conditions]

I move that the application be DENIED. 

Choose one… 

The application is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

The application is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

State reasons…

This action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons: 

This report reflects the decision of the City Council, this the 7th day of May, 2019. 

Attest: 

Gerald R. Peterman, Mayor 

Darcy L. Sperry, City Clerk 

Lacy Acres 
(S1901) 

Type of Request 
Major Subdivision 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 16, 2019 

City Council on May 7, 2019 

Page 42 of 50



 STAFF REPORT 

REQUESTED ACTION:  

Approve Revised Animal Shelter Operating Agreement. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

In 2002, the Alamance Pet Adoption and Shelter Improvement Committee 
recommended that an adequate and equitable funding formula be established to fund 
pet adoption and animal shelter operations within Alamance County.  A per capita 
formula was subsequently established that included contributions from all cities within 
Alamance County.  The City of Graham began contributing in 2004 and adopted the 
current operating agreement with Alamance County and the City of Burlington in 2005. 

In 2015, following an initiative to expand the existing shelter, managers from their 
respective cities began discussing a revised agreement to share in the operational costs. 
Several funding formulas were considered and ultimately it was determined that a per 
capita rate using the sales tax methodology would achieve the greatest equity. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The proposed agreement stipulates a phased approach over three years to arrive at the 
new formula.  In FY 19-20, the City of Graham is scheduled to contribute $117,760 or 9.2% of operating costs.  Following the 
3-year phased implementation, the City’s share would be $74,160 or 5.79% (unadjusted for inflation or population change).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval. Although equity for municipal residents is not fully established with this agreement, the proposed agreement 
gets us closer; all the while Graham residents will continue to benefit from expanded animal services such as the 
Spay/Neuter Clinic and Pet Adoption Center.   

SUGGESTED MOTION(S): 

I make a motion to approve the revised “Agreement to Operate Burlington Animal Shelter & Pet Adoption Center”. 

SUBJECT: ANIMAL SHELTER OPERATING AGREEMENT 

PREPARED BY: FRANKIE MANESS, CITY MANAGER 

Page 43 of 50



City of Burlington - Animal Services Alamance County Population (NC OMB) 163,339.00
Less:  Gibsonville Population (Not included in Cost Projections) (3,562.00)
Total Population for Calculations 159,777.00

Cost Share Projection
Modified 50/50

Shared Expenses

Population 2018-2019 Shared Expenses
2019-2020 Shared Expenses 

(Projection)
2020-2021 Shared Expenses 

(Projection)
2021-2022 Shared Expenses 

(Projection)
2022-2023 Shared Expenses 

(Projection)
Alamance County 159,777 468,748.23 566,912.00 641,976.56 717,041.13 792,105.69
Burlington 52,323 360,821.96 399,744.00 352,960.98 306,177.96 259,394.94
Elon 12,183 73,500.12 63,360.00 62,372.69 61,385.38 60,398.08
Graham 14,959 103,369.15 117,760.00 103,226.76 88,693.53 74,160.29
Green Level 2,156 14,760.04 14,720.00 13,376.17 12,032.35 10,688.52
Haw River 2,421 16,644.30 16,640.00 15,094.09 13,548.18 12,002.28
Mebane 11,254 75,475.11 82,688.00 73,722.83 64,757.66 55,792.49
Ossipee 584 4,012.78 3,968.00 3,610.41 3,252.81 2,895.22
Swepsonville 1,439 9,477.13 9,856.00 8,948.65 8,041.30 7,133.94
Alamance (Village) 1,095 7,453.30 4,352.00 4,710.85 5,069.69 5,428.54
Total 258,191 1,134,262.12 1,280,000.00 1,280,000.00 1,280,000.00 1,280,000.00

Percentages

Population Current Year (2018-2019) - Per Capita
1st Year (2019-2020) - Modified 

50/50 Formula 2nd Year (2020-2021) 3rd Year (2021-2022) (2022-2023) - Sales Tax Percentages
Alamance County 159,777 41.33% 44.29% 50.15% 56.02% 61.88%
Burlington 52,323 31.81% 31.23% 27.58% 23.92% 20.27%
Elon 12,183 6.48% 4.95% 4.87% 4.80% 4.72%
Graham 14,959 9.11% 9.20% 8.06% 6.93% 5.79%
Green Level 2,156 1.30% 1.15% 1.05% 0.94% 0.84%
Haw River 2,421 1.47% 1.30% 1.18% 1.06% 0.94%
Mebane 11,254 6.65% 6.46% 5.76% 5.06% 4.36%
Ossipee 584 0.35% 0.31% 0.28% 0.25% 0.23%
Swepsonville 1,439 0.84% 0.77% 0.70% 0.63% 0.56%
Alamance (Village) 1,095 0.66% 0.34% 0.37% 0.40% 0.42%
Total 258,191 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Reference from Initial Meeting

ANIMAL SERVICES OPERATING COSTS 50% Intake + 50% Population

Alamance County Balance 566,838.55
Burlington 399,204.56
Elon 56,989.48
Graham 117,809.08
Green Level 17,837.46
Haw River 23,638.71
Mebane 78,252.70
Ossipee 5,282.08
Swepsonville 9,856.92
Alamance (Village) 4,290.46
Total 1,280,000.00

Page 44 of 50



2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Intake 7592 7937 6742 7013 6902 6132 5326 4643 5117 4595 4703
Positive Outcomes 1414 1371 1362 1478 1488 1325 1935 2657 3330 3702 4024
Euthanasia 6432 6392 5305 5388 5326 4614 3371 1739 1517 1047 304
Spay/ Neuter Clinic Pets Sterilized n/a n/a 996 1012 1052 1499 1600 1655 1546 1514 2050

Spay/ Neuter Clinic Pets Sterilized
Euthanasia

Positive Outcomes
Intake

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Spay/ Neuter Clinic Pets Sterilized 0 0 996 1012 1052 1499 1600 1655 1546 1514 2050
Euthanasia 6432 6392 5305 5388 5326 4614 3371 1739 1517 1047 304
Positive Outcomes 1414 1371 1362 1478 1488 1325 1935 2657 3330 3702 4024
Intake 7592 7937 6742 7013 6902 6132 5326 4643 5117 4595 4703

Burlington Animal Services Progress 2008-2018 

Page 45 of 50



P a g e  | 1 

 

March 29, 2019 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 

ALAMANCE COUNTY 

 AGREEMENT TO OPERATE BURLINGTON 

ANIMAL SHELTER & PET ADOPTION 

CENTER 

 

THIS AGREEMENT  made and entered into this ________ day of _______________, 2019, by 

and between the City of Burlington, a political subdivision and body politic of the State of North 

Carolina (hereinafter, “City”) and ________________________________________, (hereinafter 

“______”) a political subdivision and body politic of the State of North Carolina.  

WITNESSETH: 

BACKGROUND AND HISTORY 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 160A-460 and 461 provide for the coordination and cooperation of units 

of local government to enter into contracts and agreements with one another in order to execute 

joint undertakings; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §130A-184 et seq., and Chapter 19A of the State statutes, the 

local County health director is responsible for administering here in Alamance County, through 

the Sheriff’s Department, animal control enforcement services as they relate to public health 

issues which include the capture, quarantine and evaluation of rabid animals and the capture, 

control and euthanasia of dogs officially declared "dangerous" or "vicious." Other animal control 

services, including the construction, maintenance and operation of an animal shelter, are not 

statutorily required of the County government and are deemed elective services and are the 

responsibility and choice of each respective local governmental entity; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160A-493 and N.C.G.S. §153A-442, cities and counties 

"may establish, equip, operate and maintain an animal shelter or may contribute to the support of 

an animal shelter, and for these purposes may appropriate funds not otherwise limited as to use 

by law. The animal shelters shall meet the same standards of animal shelters regulated by the 

Department of Agriculture pursuant to its authority under Chapter 19A of the General Statutes"; 

and, 

WHEREAS, prior to the 1970's, several of the municipalities in Alamance County operated their 

own "dog pounds" for the citizens and residents of their jurisdictions and the County of 

Alamance operated an animal shelter facility for the citizens residing outside of said municipal 

jurisdictions; and, 

Page 46 of 50



P a g e  | 2 

 

March 29, 2019 
 

WHEREAS, the City now operates the Animal Shelter and Pet Adoption Center under the 

auspices of “Burlington Animal Services”; and, 

WHEREAS, in the 1970's, the County of Alamance ceased operating an animal shelter and 

contracted with the City of Burlington to provide such animal  sheltering services for the citizens 

in Alamance County outside of the City of Burlington's corporate limits; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Burlington and the County of Alamance previously entered into an 

Agreement on August 7, 1990 to cooperate in the construction and operation of the Burlington 

Animal Services shelter and intake facility located at 221 Stone Quarry Road, Haw River, North 

Carolina; and, 

WHEREAS, in 2004 the City of Burlington, the County of Alamance and the Pet Adoption and 

Welfare Society (hereinafter, PAWS) financed the construction of the Pet Adoption Center 

located at 221 Stone  Quarry  Rd,  Haw River, North Carolina, on the  campus of the Burlington 

Animal Services and adjacent to the current Burlington Animal Shelter; and, 

WHEREAS, during the period of 2005-2006, the City of Burlington entered into separate 

agreements with each of the designated Local Government Entities (sometimes referred to as 

Entity) to share in the annual operating costs of the Animal Shelter and Pet Adoption Center: 

Village of Alamance: 03/21/2005 

City of Mebane: 2004 

City of Gibsonville: 02/17/2005 

Town of Elon:  12/14/2004 

Town of Swepsonville: 03/14/2005 

Town of Ossippee: 2005 

Town of Haw River: 06/07/2004 

Town of Green Level: 12/7/2006 

City of Graham: 04/05/2005 

WHEREAS, on October 4, 2016 the City of Burlington, the County of Alamance and PAWS 

entered into an agreement captioned Memorandum of Understanding Agreement for the Purpose 

of Constructing and Financing the Construction of a Joint Animal Shelter Facility (hereinafter 

Animal Services Center) to provide for the sharing of the costs of the renovation of portions of 

the existing Pet Adoption Center and construction of a new animal shelter (facility) to be located 

at 221 Stone Quarry Road, Haw River, North Carolina, on the site of the current Burlington 

Animal Services Department’s Animal Shelter and the Pet Adoption Center. 

Page 47 of 50



P a g e  | 3 

 

March 29, 2019 
 

STIPULATIONS 

WHEREAS the parties to this agreement believe cost benefits will be realized by sharing the 

costs of the operation of the Animal Services Center, rather than each jurisdiction providing such 

services independently; and 

WHEREAS, each party to this agreement is committed to appropriating and furnishing the funds 

necessary to fund the operation of the Animal Services Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties to this agreement desire to enter into this agreement to provide 

professional, humane animal sheltering and placement services that are oriented towards 

providing positive outcomes for pets for their jurisdictions; and,  

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the equitable sharing of costs for 

operation of the Burlington Animal Services’ Animal Services Center located at 221 Stone 

Quarry Road, Burlington North Carolina. This Agreement serves to supersede the previous 

agreements entered into by the City and the entities set out above.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and considerations set out 

above, it is agreed as follows: 

1. The City of Burlington shall provide qualified personnel to operate the Animal Services 

Center and said personnel shall be employed by the City of Burlington. 

 

2. The City shall operate the Animal Services Center under its policies and procedures in 

accordance with applicable state statutes governing animal shelters.  

 

3. The City shall provide animal sheltering services for the animals originating from the 

local governments party to this agreement (hereinafter “Entity” or “Entities”) Entities 

shall follow current Burlington Animal Services standards, policies and procedures for 

the admission and care of animals. Standards, policies and procedures are updated 

periodically by the Animal Services Director to ensure consistency with most current 

industry standards and best practices is maintained. 

 

4. Beginning in fiscal year 2022-2023, each of the Local Government Entities agrees to pay 

its share of the Animal Services Center operating costs based on the local sales tax 

distribution formula using the most recent municipal population estimates published by 

North Carolina Office of Budget Management.  The calculation shall be performed as 

follows:  

 

a. The sales tax distribution rate shall be determined by dividing the estimated net 

operating costs of the upcoming fiscal year by the sum of the County population 

plus the populations of each municipality.  

Page 48 of 50



P a g e  | 4 

 

March 29, 2019 
 

b. If a municipality of Alamance County is not a party to this agreement, the non-

participating municipal population will not be counted or included in determining 

the sales tax distribution formula. Example: (Estimated Net Annual Operation 

Cost) / (County Population – Town of Gibsonville population + City of 

Burlington population + City of Graham population + City of Mebane population 

+ Town of Green Level population + Town of Haw River population + Town of 

Swepsonville population + Town of Elon population + Village of Alamance 

population + Town of Ossipee population) 

c. The share of the operating expense responsible by the Local Government Entity 

shall be determined by multiplying the sales tax distribution rate by the total 

population of the Local Government Entity.  

As determined by the participating Local Government Entities and to ease the financial burden to 

Alamance County, the transition from the FY 2018-2019 cost distribution method (per capita 

rate) to the sales tax distribution formula will occur over three fiscal years based on 

predetermined percentages of annual shared operating expenses: 

Entity FY 2019-2020 FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 

Alamance County  44.29% 50.15% 56.02% 

Burlington 31.23% 27.58% 23.92% 

Elon 4.95% 4.87% 4.80% 

Graham 9.20% 8.06% 6.93% 

Green Level 1.15% 1.05% 0.94% 

Haw River 1.30% 1.18% 1.06% 

Mebane 6.46% 5.76% 5.06% 

Ossipee 0.31% 0.28% 0.25% 

Swepsonville 0.77% 0.70% 0.63% 

Alamance (Village) 0.34% 0.37% 0.40% 

 

5. The City shall send estimated costs to each Entity on an annual basis, not later than April 

1
st
. An invoice will be issued and such fee shall be paid to the City of Burlington 

annually, not later than October 1
st
.  

 

6. Any annual increase of the estimated net operating cost of 10% or over the previous year 

will trigger a conference of the chief administrative officers (Managers) of the Local 

Government Entities. 

 

7. Any revenues generated by the operation of the Animal Services Center and any grants 

applied for and received shall be used to offset the cost of the operations of the Animal 

Services Center. 

 

Page 49 of 50



P a g e  | 5 

 

March 29, 2019 
 

8. All billing and collection of fees shall be administered by the City of Burlington. 

 

9. Any amendments to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the appropriate 

representatives of each Entity. 

 

10. This agreement shall be effective from execution until June 30, 2025. 

 

11. Early termination of this agreement by participating entities may occur after the Entity 

gives notice to the City of Burlington no later than December 31 of the previous year of 

the Entity’s intent not to participate in the subsequent fiscal year.  

 

12. In the event payment of fees by a party to this Agreement has not been received by 

December 31of each year, the City may cease or modify providing services for the Entity 

until payment is received.  

IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, the City of Burlington and the ____________________ have 

caused this agreement to be duly executed on its representative’s behalf and attested.  

ATTEST:                                      CITY OF BURLINGTON 

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      City Manager 

        

Finance Officer Pre-audit Certification: 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the 

manner required by the Local Government 

Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  

 

____________________________________ 

City Finance Officer 

 

ATTEST:      ENTITY 

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

City/ Town/ Village/County Clerk Manager 

Page 50 of 50


	May 7, 2019 Regular Session
	1. Consent Agenda:
	a. Approve Minutes - April 2, 2019 Regular Session
	b. Approve Tax Releases & Refunds
	c. Approve Traffic Schedule Amendment
	d. Approve Public Private Parking Lease Agreement
	LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PARKING FACILITIES
	SUBJECT:
	MARY FAUCETTE, DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR 
	PREPARED BY:
	Requested Action:
	Background/Summary:
	Fiscal Impact:
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion(s):

	e. Approve West Elm Street Closure Request

	2. Old Business:
	a. East Interstate Service Road Property:
	i. Accept offer to purchase for surplus property

	b. Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: Kronbergs Campground (SUP1901)

	3. Requests & Petitions from Citizens:
	a. Request from Jasaon Cox for Consideration of a City Sponsored Life Safety Improvements Program

	4. Recommendations from Planning Board:
	April 16, 2019 Planning Board Minutes
	a. Public Hearing: Lacy Acres (RZ1901). Request to rezone property from R-18 to R-9
	b. Public Hearing: Lacy Acres (S1901). Request to approve Major Subdivision

	5. Approve Agreement to Operate Burlington Animal Shelter & Pet Adoption Center
	6. Issues Not on Tonight’s Agenda




